
REGULAR SESSION TUESDAY JANUARY 31, 2017  

The Board of Huron County Commissioners met this date in Regular Session.  Roll being called found 

the following members present: Terry Boose, Joe Hintz, Bruce Wilde. 

 

Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 305.14 the Record of the Proceedings of the January 19, 2017 and 

January 24, 2017 meeting(s) were presented to the Board. Terry Boose made the motion to waive the 

reading of the minutes of the January 19, 2017 and January 24, 2017 meeting(s) and approve as presented.           

Bruce Wilde seconded the motion. Voting was as follows:  

 

Aye – Terry Boose 

       Aye – Joe Hintz  

       Aye – Bruce Wilde 

 

17-050 

 

IN THE MATTER OF CERTIFYING CLAIMS SCHEDULES TO THE HURON COUNTY 

AUDITOR FOR PAYMENT 

 

Terry Boose moved the adoption of the following resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, as per Ohio Revised Code 305.10, a resolution must be made by the Board of Huron 

County Commissioners to accompany the Claims Schedule to the Huron County Auditor’s Office for 

payment; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Huron County Commissioners does hereby approve Claim 

Schedule 01/31/17 and authorizes the Huron County Auditor to make the necessary warrants; and further  

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the foregoing resolution was adopted and all actions and deliberations of the 

Board of Commissioners of the County of Huron, Ohio relating thereto were conducted in meetings open 

to the public, in compliance with all applicable legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio 

Revised Code. 

 

Bruce Wilde seconded the motion.  The roll being called upon its adoption, the vote resulted as follows:  

 

Aye – Terry Boose 

       Aye – Joe Hintz  

       Aye – Bruce Wilde 



REGULAR SESSION TUESDAY JANUARY 31, 2017  



REGULAR SESSION TUESDAY JANUARY 31, 2017  

 
 

Discussion: Mr. Boose questioned the checks for the Sheraton Hotel for the Commissioners training. Is 

this an actual check? Mr. Hintz stated yes it’s a check that they take down to pay for the rooms. 

Mr. Boose would like Mr. Roblin to look into the cost of his fax line, he feels this is way too high.  

Mr. Boose questioned under miscellaneous, there are a lot of Prosecutor’s bills come through this, has this 

always been this way. Ms. Ziemba stated that is correct. 

Mr. Boose questioned the Columbia Gas bill was higher at DJFS. Mr. Hintz stated that they had such a 

problem out there, it could have been from this situation. Mr. Wilde suggested getting the bills for last 

year to see if this a regular.  

Ms. Ziemba stated that Mr. Roblin stated that they were never charged before for the fax line, and now 

they are trying to play catch up.  

Mr. Boose feels that the internet costs are way too high and each office holder has different internet 

providers. He would like to address this issue to the office holders. 

 

 

 



REGULAR SESSION TUESDAY JANUARY 31, 2017  

17-051 

 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING REQUESTS FOR EXPENDITURE OF OVER $1,000.00 

SUBMITTED TO THE BOARD JANUARY 31, 2017 

 

Terry Boose moved the adoption of the following resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, requests for expenditures of over $1,000.00 have been submitted for approval by the Board 

of Huron County Commissioners as follows: 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

Vance Outdoors   Taser cartridges (50 ct.)  $1,697.50        now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Huron County Commissioners hereby approves of the requests for 

expenditure of over $1,000.00 as listed above; and further 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the foregoing resolution was adopted and all actions and deliberations of the 

Board of Commissioners of the County of Huron, Ohio relating thereto were conducted in meetings open 

to the public, in compliance with all applicable legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio 

Revised Code. 

      

Bruce Wilde seconded the motion.  The roll being called upon its adoption, the vote resulted as follows:  

 

Aye – Terry Boose 

       Aye – Joe Hintz  

       Aye – Bruce Wilde 

 
17-052 

 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING AGREEMENT BETWEEN WILLIS OF OHIO, INC. AND 

HURON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Terry Boose moved the adoption of the following resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Huron County Commissioners, and Willis of Ohio, Inc. desire to execute this 

agreement for professional services covering the periods January 1, 2017 – December 31, 2017;                      

                                                                                                                                                   now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Huron County Commissioners approves the agreement with 

Willis of Ohio Inc. as attached hereto and incorporated herein;                                                    and further 

   

BE IT RESOLVED, that the foregoing resolution was adopted and all actions and deliberations of the 

Board of Commissioners of the County of Huron, Ohio, relating thereto were conducted in meetings open 

to the public, in compliance with all applicable legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio 

Revised Code. 

 

Bruce Wilde seconded the motion.  The roll being called upon its adoption, the vote resulted as follows:  

 

Aye – Terry Boose 

       Aye – Joe Hintz  

       Aye – Bruce Wilde 

*Agreement on file.  

 

IN THE MATTER OF TRAVEL 

Terry Boose moved to approve the following travel request this day. Bruce Wilde seconded the motion.  

The roll being called upon its adoption, the vote resulted as follows:  

 

Aye – Terry Boose 

       Aye – Joe Hintz  

       Aye – Bruce Wilde 

 



REGULAR SESSION TUESDAY JANUARY 31, 2017  

Roland Tkach, Auditor to Columbus, Ohio on February 2, 2017 for the ODRA Meeting. 

Roland Tkach, Auditor to Dublin, Ohio on February 1, 2017 for the CAAO Legislative Committee 

Meeting. 

Jill Eversole Nolan, DJFS to Columbus, Ohio on February 9-10, 2017 for the State DJFS Directors 

Meeting. 

 

At 9:30 a.m. Public Comment - No Comment 

 

Assistant Prosecutor’s Report  

Mr. Strickler reported on the Commissioners question of whether they can put a senior levy on the ballot. 

Mr. Strickler stated you can put a levy on for services or facility. If you want to build something you can 

put a levy on or if you want to get extra money to put into their budget. Mr. Boose asked if the SES board 

meetings are required to be open. Mr. Strickler will prepare a prosecutor opinion. 

 

Mr. Strickler stated that Ms. Knapp, HCDC, asked whether the prosecutor can be legal counsel for them. 

Mr. Stickler stated that it was determined that they could not be HCDC legal counsel. 

 

Mr. Boose discussed the Health Department coming to the Board asking for $6,200.00 to belong to the 

task force and you become a voting member. This will give this group the ability to apply for grants, it 

will be a 501(C)(3). Mr. Boose asked if the Commissioners could be part of a 501(C)(3). Mr. Strickler 

stated he was not sure, Mr. Boose would like Mr. Strickler to look into this so they could put this into 

their budget. Mr. Boose would like to know if they can be a voting member on this 501(C)(3), Mr. Wilde 

asked if there is a lot of members. Mr. Boose stated there is only 8 voting members.  

 

Mr. Strickler discussed the Veteran Services regarding the question about do the Commissioners have to 

provide them office space. According to the Ohio Revised Code, must supply them with office space. 

Cannot charge rent or utilities because they are considered a county office. Mr. Strickler stated they must 

fund them for not more than a ½ mill. Mr. Hintz asks if they can use money from the ½ mill to remodel 

their space. Mr. Boose and Mr. Strickler said if they allow you to, it’s the Veteran’s money to spend as 

they see fit.  

Mr. Strickler explained what they can do by MOU for the Veteran’s to kick back $80,000.00 a year for 

let’s say 10 years. Mr. Strickler stated that the Commissioners can enter into agreement stating they are 

guaranteed that space for a specific period of time as long as they kick back $80,000.00 which is their 

choice to do. Mr. Wilde stated he would like to do something now. Mr. Boose said whatever is decided 

you need to make sure the Commissioners don’t lose control over the building. Need a joint exploratory 

committee between the commissioners’ board and veterans’ board. Should be a joint project to move 

forward. Mr. Boose feels there is more than one option, not sure the decision will be for a new building. 

Mr. Boose would like to move forward with a broad plan instead of a narrow plan and would like them to 

come forward with space requirements.  

 

At 9:52 a.m. Sheriff Todd Corbin, Chief Wagner, Tammy Schaffer.  

Sheriff Corbin presented cruiser price per vehicle at $32,516.00 depending how the commissioners want 

to do this a 4 year lease would cost $198,000.00, we would lose $15,000.00. Mr. Hintz asked if these 

were 4 wheeled drive. Sheriff Corbin stated that is correct. Mr. Hintz wants to make sure they are getting 

what they need and want. Mr. Boose asked if we got 6 cars this year, how many would we need to 

purchase in the next 5 years. Sheriff Corbin stated he’s hoping these vehicles would last at least 3 years. 

Mr. Boose stated that this should be a good rotation.  

 

Sheriff Corbin stated that in order to get central dispatching the radios will cost $62,000 and the consoles 

$33,000. Mr. Boose asked Sheriff Corbin if he currently had the $100,000.00 in his budget, Sheriff 

Corbin stated no. Sheriff Corbin suggested disbanding the 911 committee and give money back to sheriff 

and various police departments. Sheriff Corbin stated that the EMA fund is sitting on $221,000.00 The 

Sheriff’s office would get approximately $100,000. Mr. Boose asked if he has any conversation with 

Jason Roblin, Sheriff Corbin stated not at this time. This money would give them the financials for extra 

personnel for deputies, dispatchers. Mr. Wilde explained that $62,000 is a one-time cost. Mr. Welch 

asked Sheriff Corbin will the cost of maintenance go down, Sheriff Corbin states it depends on the driver. 

Therefore he would council the drivers on not beating up the cruisers. Sheriff Corbin explained that when 

a cruiser hits 200,000 miles he is going to have the mechanic look them over and if it is a safety issue he 

will have the cruiser parked.  

 



REGULAR SESSION TUESDAY JANUARY 31, 2017  



REGULAR SESSION TUESDAY JANUARY 31, 2017  

 
 

Sheriff Corbin would like to hire new employees 5 road officers and 2 dispatchers this will put them 

where they need to be regarding the state minimum, he will need about $250,000 extra. Sheriff Corbin is 

estimating them to start Feb. 19th. Ms. Ziemba explained to Sheriff Corbin that the Auditor would like to 

speak to him regarding the leasing of the vehicles if this is what Sheriff Corbin would like to do. Mr. 

Boose stated that the Auditor will not be making the decision, but he does have different entities that he 

deals with and maybe able to get better pricing. Mr. Boose wanted to clarify this would be lease to buy.  

Mr. Wilde wanted to clarify how many cars is Sheriff Corbin stated it is at the Commissioners disposal, 

he would like 6 but they will take 3. Mr. Boose stated that if they do 3 now and 3 every year after that it 

will get us into a great cycle. Sheriff Corbin discussed push bars on the cars, it would be an extra cost and 

ballistic doors, not in the budget but are discussing with the chief deputy. Mr. Boose stated it sounds like 

they have the money in the budget for the cars. Sheriff Corbin needs to get with the Auditor regarding the 

lease to buy.  

 

Sheriff Corbin discussed the ABCO certification, all the police departments are going to adopt the same 

policy. No matter what dispatch center you get, that call will be dispatched the same way from every 

department.  

 

Sheriff Corbin discussed the officers at the Courthouse not being able to contact the Sheriff’s Office 

directly. One of the voters wasn’t working the cost to fix is $2,000.00. Mr. Todd Wagner explained a 

voter listens for the signal on the officer, the strongest signal that voter wins the fight and turns around 

and transmits to the Sheriff’s office. The voter at the Norwalk Police Department receives but does not 

retransmit the signal, this now goes to the Wakeman voter or the one at the landfill. Mr. Welch asked how 

this gets fixed. Sheriff Corbin explained that they need to contact VASU. Mr. Welch was confused as to 

why this doesn’t transmit directly to the Sheriff’s Office antenna. It goes to the next available tower 

which would be the landfill. 

 

Mr. Boose questioned about Inmate Calling Solutions on the claim schedule, Tammy Schafer explains, it 

is paid for by the prisoners and the county makes a commission.  

 

Mr. Boose discussed working on a long term plan for maintenance at the sheriff’s office, which includes 

the parking lot should get done this spring. Mr. Welch stated they hired a cleaning person to clean twice a 

week on the civil side including the lobby and sheriff’s office.  

 

Mr. Wilde questioned the water computer and hot water tank, Sheriff Corbin stated that his has crashed. 

Commissioners would like to come out and walk through the jail facility. Mr. Corbin would love them to 

come out and he believed he has a solution for the records retention, he will be purchasing Conex boxes. 

Mr. Welch asked once they go through the Conex boxes they are going to need permanent storage for 



REGULAR SESSION TUESDAY JANUARY 31, 2017  

these records. Sheriff Corbin stated that is correct. The board stated they are working on finding them 

space. They are thinking about the basement in the antique mall. They are working on getting quotes. 

 

At 10:40 a.m. the board recessed.  

 

At 10:45 a.m. the board resumed regular session. Warren Brown, HR, came before the board to discuss 

some training. Mr. Brown explained that on a yearly basis they hold the elected officials and department 

heads training through CORSA. Mr. Brown also discussed the sexual harassment, discrimination, 

recommended yearly, he is recommending we hold a class, 2 hour training, would like one in the morning 

and one in the afternoon. The cost is $1250. This need done ASAP. Mr. Brown discussed the CPR/AED 

class that JFS is doing, if someone would like to take this and is part of the general fund it will cost $15 

per person. 

 

Terry Boose moved to approve and provide both trainings. Bruce Wilde seconded the motion. The roll 

being called upon its adoption, the vote resulted as follows:  

 

Aye – Terry Boose 

       Aye – Joe Hintz  

       Aye – Bruce Wilde 

 

Mr. Brown presented a draft job description for a “Revenue Enhancement Officer”. Mr. Brown needs 

some input regarding this. Mr. Boose stated that in the second bullet point it says “writes” it should state 

“helps write”.  

 

 
 

Mr. Boose explained that he is trying to set up a meeting for Thursday with Senator Manning and 

Representative Dick Stein and Roxanne Sadler to talk about grants for state money.  

 

Mr. Boose stated he believes this would be full time unclassified job. Mr. Boose asked if this is there an 

interaction between this job and the human resources job. Mr. Boose explained he would like a full time 

person doing this but under them would be the human resource person.  Looking to assign these extra 

duties to Mr. Brown. Budgeting discussion for this position. Mr. Boose would like the new person to fall 

under the Human Resources Director. Mr. Brown explained he has been working this position into his 

budget. 

 

Mr. Brown would like an executive session: 

 

At 11:08 a.m. Terry Boose moved to enter into executive session ORC 121.22 (G)(1) to consider the 



REGULAR SESSION TUESDAY JANUARY 31, 2017  

appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, or compensation of a public 

employee or official, or the investigation of charges or complaints against a public employee, official, 

licensee, or regulated individual. Bruce Wilde seconded the motion. The roll being called upon its 

adoption, the vote resulted as follows:  

Aye – Terry Boose 

       Aye – Joe Hintz  

       Aye – Bruce Wilde 

 

At 11:29 am. Terry Boose moved to end executive session ORC 121.22 (G)(1). Bruce Wilde seconded 

the motion. The roll being called upon its adoption, the vote resulted as follows:  

 

Aye – Terry Boose 

       Aye – Joe Hintz  

       Aye – Bruce Wilde 

*No action taken. 

 

SIGNINGS 

Cell phone allowance.  The board discussed the need to look at an increase in the budget.  

 

Mr. Hintz questioned where they are at regarding MHAS board appointments, this will be to fill 3 with a 

remaining 1 left to appoint. Mr. Hintz explained that Mayor Duncan would like to sit on the board. Mr. 

Boose stated that Mr. Duncan needs to clarify what the criteria is to sit on this board because they already 

have 2 people from the City of Norwalk. 

 

The Board stated the budget discussion will be after recess. Mr. Boose would like to discuss the jail 

budget. 

 

At 11:47 a.m. the board recessed. 

 

At 12:42 p.m. the board resumed regular session.  

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

Mr. Boose explained the governor’s budget. Don’t worry about it right now. CCAO’s job is to fight for us 

and they do a good job.  

 

Mr. Boose stated that they are looking at a sustainable budget. The jail budget in previous years has been 

subsidized by general fund. Jail sales tax brought in two million to 3.2 million and we don’t have to pay 

the bonds. Mr. Boose stated if you look at what Mr. Tkach is estimating 2.7 million, they have budgeted 

$2.9 million, subsidizing around $200,000.00 dollars of general fund money. Mr. Boose explained that if 

you look at the transfer out line there is $399,438, this is where they would pay the bonds out of and 

because they don’t have to pay them this year, they could take that money to do the parking lot or 

anything else they need to do.  

 

Mr. Boose explained that they don’t have an exact plan for it, he feels that the parking lot is going to take 

a huge chunk of the money. Mr. Boose stated if they reduced it by the amount being subsidized by the 

general fund, take $200,000 out of there that still leaves $200,000 in that account approximately. That 

would balance it with the amount of money that Mr. Tkach is stating the sales tax will be. Basically what 

we are doing is budgeting what Mr. Tkach is saying is the sales tax.  

 

Mr. Boose stated they would use $200,000 towards the amount needed for cruisers and equipment leaving 

$199,000 to go towards the parking lots. Mr. Boose stated that the Sheriff is asking for another $250,000 

in salaries with totals $350,000 in other expenses. That would not leave a lot of money for other projects 

except for the parking lot this year. This will be a tight year, but if they can get through this year it will be 

ok. Mr. Boose explained that Mr. Tkach stated that sales tax is going to come in at half a million less than 

last year. Mr. Boose explained that the sales tax is already up for the first month, so what will happen is 

half a million will be rolled over in 036 potentially next year. Mr. Boose explained that next year it could 

easily be $199,000 plus half a million. Mr. Boose stated that they shouldn’t be putting any general fund 

money into the jail. Mr. Wilde stated that they are still $150,000 short. Mr. Hintz stated that it could be 

too conservative, it can go each way. Mr. Wilde stated they don’t have choice.  

 

The board discussed the Sheriff’s budget as educational purpose. Ms. Ziemba asked Mr. Boose to repeat 



REGULAR SESSION TUESDAY JANUARY 31, 2017  

what should be in 036...$2,783,333.00. Ms. Ziemba stated that is $169,295 going over to 023.  

 

Mr. Hintz explained that there is a dealer in the county who might match if not beat the lowest pricing 

giving at state funding. Mr. Boose explained that the bidding process is more difficult and he feels they 

do not have the time to get the quotes from this dealer. Mr. Boose stated that if they don’t take the state 

bidder, then it will have to go out to bid and it must be open to everyone. Mr. Boose stated these need to 

be ordered in February to get that pricing. Mr. Wilde stated that he is all for saving money, however if 

they bid this they will lose a year. Mr. Wilde states that their hands are tied this year. There are only 

fourteen days left to get these cars ordered. 

 

Mr. Wilde stated that they can do the 6 cruisers and they have a $170,000 more to work with, $100,000 

for the equipment and $70,000 employees so they need to find $180,000.00. Mr. Hintz asked Ms. Ziemba 

what they need to do to move forward on the cruisers. Ms. Ziemba stated that the Sheriff needs to speak 

to the Auditor, Mr. Hintz stated no what we need to do to fund it. Ms. Ziemba explained they have some 

in 099, they just need to know what the amount is after he speaks with the Auditor and they find out the 

financing. Ms. Ziemba explained that they have $50,000 that was dedicated to cruisers with a possible 

additional $40,000. 

 

The board discussed where the money for the air condition at DJFS is coming from. They have the money 

set back. Ms. Ziemba stated there is a PO for a $100,000. Not the full amount due.  

 

Mr. Wilde asked where the money goes for the trade in on cruisers goes. Ms. Ziemba stated they get sold 

on Gov-deals, Mr. Boose stated no it is part of the purchase deal that they trade in the old vehicles. Ms. 

Ziemba stated the Auditor needs to be in on this regarding the financing. Mr. Boose stated they have a lot 

to look through regarding on this budget and get a good handle on this. 

 

At 1:51 p.m. Terry Boose moved to adjourn. Bruce Wilde seconded the motion. The meeting stood 

adjourned.  

 

IN THE MATTER OF CERTIFICATION 
The Clerk to the Board does hereby attest that the foregoing is a true and correct record of all actions 

taken by the Board of Huron County Commissioners on January 31, 2017.                

 

IN THE MATTER OF ADJOURNING 
 

The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.  With no further business to come before the Board, the 

meeting was adjourned at 1:51 p. m.    

 

                          

Terry Boose 

 

                           

Joe Hintz 

 

                            

Bruce Wilde 

ATTEST 
 

                                                                         

Clerk to the Board 


